FIRES OF DIVINITION OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PRO

STUDY GUIDE OF REVIVAL BREAKTHROUGH

JAMES W. GOLL

Endorsements

Many of the predictions of the coming revival ring hollow and do not stir us with fire. This is because the predictor seems shallow and Johnny-come-lately. However, James Goll hits us with the certainty and force of a life spent seeking, contending, and verifying his conviction that a global glory is coming. If you read this, you too will not only believe revival is at the door, but you will also be prepared to embrace it.

---Mario Murillo
Evangelist

Revival is coming...are you ready for it? We all long to see true revival come to our nation and the world. What brings revival? Is it all due to a sovereign move of God, or is our participation a necessary ingredient? I say it is both. James Goll reveals God's clear pattern of revival and awakening through biblical principles, examples from Scripture and church history, and prophetic words from our own time. Enter into the fires of revival and be part of the next Great Awakening! James clearly shows what you as an individual—and in concert with other believers—can do to prepare your heart and life. Then you can work in partnership with God to bring revival that will lead to widespread awakening and the greatest harvest of souls that the world has ever witnessed!

—*Mike Bickle* International House of Prayer of Kansas City

James Goll has done it again! This is teaching you can trust and revelation that gets results. The truths presented here are the beginning of new breakthroughs for you!

—Tony Kemp Founder, the ACTS Group President, Tony Kemp Ministries What an exciting time it is right now! The greatest harvest of souls that has ever been known is upon us, and the Lord's glory and presence are flooding the nations! I remember listening to James Goll share with a small group of us about past moves of God—how they grew, what sustained them, and what God birthed out of them— and I felt on fire and excited to be part of this next move. James has always been a forerunner as he hears God's instructions and then plows and lays foundations for us to navigate what is coming next. This is a guide and a vessel of wisdom for this season we are about to be thrust into.

—Ana Werner
Seer Prophet
Founder and President, Eagles Network
Author, The Seer's Path

This guide gives voice to the multifaceted study of revival. It will certainly be a foundation that the next generation can learn from to accelerate God's using them to see the end-time harvest of God. James Goll is the real deal. He pulls from wisdom gained through decades of intimacy with God.

—Cindy Jacobs Generals International

James Goll is a father of revival, a pioneer of prayer, and a general in the prophetic. Who better than he to pen in-depth strategies for breakthrough and personally guide us through seasons of glory and awakening? With unparalleled teaching throughout, this will equip you for the days ahead. This is a field guide that needs to be in the hands of every believer who is ready for transformation in their own life, family, city, and region.

—Prophet Charlie Shamp
Cofounder and President, Destiny Encounters International
Author of five books, including Mystical Prayer
www.destinyencounters.com

We are living in unprecedented times! In the midst of encroaching darkness and a prevailing shaking in the earth, God is ramping up for the greatest season of revival and awakening the world has ever seen. James Goll sets a course for the church to prepare for history's greatest harvest and manifestation of the glory of God. Come, Lord Jesus, come!

—Tom and Jane Hamon Apostles, Vision Church @ Christian International Authors of 7 Anointings for Kingdom Transformation, Dreams and Visions, Discernment, and Declarations for Breakthrough



Published by **God Encounters Ministries**P.O. Box 681965, Franklin, TN 37068

<u>www.godencounters.com</u>

Copyright © 2023 James W. Goll All rights reserved

Unless otherwise indicated, all Scripture quotations are taken from the New American Standard Bible®, NASB®, © 1960, 1971, 1977, 1995, 2020 by The Lockman Foundation. Used by permission. (www.Lockman.org)

Scripture quotations marked (NIV) are taken from the *Holy Bible, New International*®, NIV®, © 1973, 1978, 1984, 2011 by Biblica, Inc.® Used by permission. All rights reserved worldwide. The "NIV" and "New International Version" are trademarks registered in the United States Patent and Trademark Office by Biblica, Inc.®

Scripture quotations marked (NKJV) are taken from the *New King James Version*, © 1979, 1980, 1982 by Thomas Nelson, Inc. Used by permission. All rights reserved.

Scripture quotations marked (NLT) are taken from the *Holy Bible, New Living Translation*, © 1996, 2004, 2007 by Tyndale House Foundation. Used by permission of Tyndale House Publishers, Inc., Carol Stream, Illinois 60188. All rights reserved.

Used by permission.

Scripture quotations marked (TLB) are taken from *The Living Bible*, © 1971. Used by permission of Tyndale House Publishers, Inc., Carol Stream, Illinois 60188. All rights reserved.

Scripture quotations marked (ESV) are taken from *The Holy Bible, English Standard Version*, © 2000, 2001, 1995 by Crossway Bibles, a division of Good News Publishers. Used by permission. All rights reserved.

Scripture quotations marked (KJV) are taken from the King James Version of the Holy Bible.

The KJV is public domain in the United States.

All scripture is indicated by italics.

•

Classes and Other Resources

The Fires of Revival: Study Guide of Revival Breakthrough is great for individual study in your own home, with a small group, or in a classroom setting. It also serves as part of the Revival Breakthrough class at **God Encounters Ministries**, along with the complementary book, Revival Breakthrough, and 12 Class Sessions taught by James W. Goll. Visit www.GodEncounters.com for more information about this and many other life-changing classes.

At the end of each detailed lesson are simple questions for your reflection and review. In the back of this study guide, you will find the answers to these questions to aid in your learning.

James W. Goll has many other resources available. They may be purchased at www.GodEncounters.com or by calling 1-877-200-1604. For more information, visit our website or email info@godencounters.com.

Table of Contents

Preface: God Has A Dream	1
SECTION ONE: PRAYER OPENS THE HEAVENS	
Lesson One: When God Listens to the Voice of Man	4
Lesson Two: The Need for Identificational Repentance — Father, Forgive Us!	12
Lesson Three: Creating an Opening.	20
SECTION TWO: SACRIFICE RELEASES SUPERNATURAL POWER	
Lesson Four: Practical Aspects of Fasting	28
Lesson Five: Fasting for Crisis Intervention	36
Lesson Six: Fasting Releases God's Presence and Power	43
SECTION THREE: THE POWER IN GOD'S PRESENCE	
Lesson Seven: Gatekeepers of His Presence	50
Lesson Eight: Possessed by God	59
Lesson Nine: Classic Characteristics of Revival	67
SECTION FOUR: THE GREAT HARVEST	
Lesson Ten: Revival Manifestations and Phenomena	76
Lesson Eleven: Prophetic Promises for the Great Harvest	90
Lesson Twelve: Thy Kingdom Come! From Revival to Awakening to Transformation	100
Answers to the Reflection Questions	109
Additional Resources by James W. Goll	111
End Notes	112

Preface: God Has A Dream

I walk in the spiritual gift of prophecy, and I receive many dreams from God while on assignments for Him. I have dreams about people and subjects that are important to the Lord. Recently, as I was going to sleep, I prayed, "God, do You have a dream? If You have a dream, would You like to share Your dream with me? And if You share Your dream with me, would You give me permission to share Your dream with others?"

After this, I fell asleep and had a very simple dream in which I saw myself sitting up in bed with my Bible open. In this dream, I could hear myself reading from Isaiah 60:1–3:

Arise, shine; for your light has come, and the glory of the Lord has risen upon you. For behold, darkness will cover the earth and deep darkness the peoples; but the Lord will arise upon you and His glory will appear upon you. Nations will come to your light, and kings to the brightness of your rising.

I awoke from this dream to find myself sitting up in bed with my arms out as if they were holding something. I was also prophesying from both the above portion of Scripture and Habakkuk 2:14, saying, "Arise, shine, for the glory of the Lord is risen upon you. And the knowledge of the glory of the Lord is going to cover the earth as the waters cover the seas."

I have a prophetic word for you: God has a dream in His heart, and it is about a great harvest of souls for His kingdom. It is about God's people being transformed more and more into the image of His Son Jesus. Most of all, it is about the manifestation of His glory. Part of God's dream is for His glory to come to the world anew and increasingly spread throughout the earth. We are entering into a movement of the Holy Spirit that is a "latter glory of God" dream. Haggai 2:9 says, "'The glory of this present house will be greater than the glory of the former house,' says the Lord Almighty. 'And in this place, I will grant peace,' declares the Lord Almighty" (NIV).

God wants to share this dream with us. He welcomes us to partner with Him to fulfill His purposes. The great harvest will come when God's people have a breakthrough of revival—a movement of the Holy Spirit in our midst in which we are cleansed, empowered, healed, and commissioned so we can truly be partners with Him. This movement will transform not only us but also the world around us as multitudes of people see and experience the great, latter-day glory of God.

In Fires of Revival: Study Guide of Revival Breakthrough, I invite you to come on this revival journey with me in a very personal manner. I really want you to engage with me from your heart. I hope you will enter into this journey for the sake of your family, your neighborhood, your city, and your nation.

From the very beginning of this book, I want you to know how much I depend on God and His Spirit to touch your heart through His wisdom that I share in these pages. Otherwise, all you will read is a collection of really well-formatted information—biblically sound and historically accurate but with no impact. It takes hearts engaged with the Almighty for breakthrough to occur.

Fires of Revival begins with seasoned lessons made new to us today. We will look at many portions of Scripture as we explore the foundational importance of prayer for revival and the vital aspect of fasting, including how sacrifice releases God's presence and power. We will review exciting occurrences of revival and their characteristics through the ages, and we will note the four stages of revival, awakening, reformation, and transformation. We will culminate with contemporary prophetic promises of the coming great harvest.

Let's pray together that we may fully respond to God's dream. May our hearts agree together for revival breakthrough as we prepare for a great, unprecedented harvest that will fill the world with His glory!

Father, we submit ourselves to You. We are so grateful to be alive in this hour, grateful that we get to be Annas and Simeons, or a younger generation of Your servants, who can be part of what has been promised for decades and generations. We are a chosen people, we are a royal priesthood, and we are ministers unto You. We are chosen for such a time as this. God our Father, we magnify and exalt You and the Lord Jesus Christ. We love the Holy Spirit and His presence with us. We ask for Your grace and power to fulfill all that You have called us to do in partnership with You to bring Your dream to reality. In Jesus's name, Amen!

Blessings!

James W. Goll God Encounters Ministries

Section One:

Prayer Opens the Heavens

Lesson One: When God Listens to the Voice of Man

"These all with one mind were continually devoting themselves to prayer..."
—Acts 1:14a

I. COMMON PATTERNS OF GODLY INTERCESSORS

A. Shared Characteristics of Revival Intercessors

- 1. They love and trust God supremely.
- 2. They have a deep heart response to the urgent need of the moment.
- 3. They are ready to give all and are self-sacrificing.
- 4. They often sense the need for a genuine, very personal, and corporate response with repentance.
- 5. They identify with the sins and needs of an entire generation, nation, or people group or an injustice.
- 6. They exhibit thorough, contrite, humble prayer, often including fasting.
- 7. They often call others to the task of miraculous intervention by requesting:
 - a) Protection
 - b) Provision
 - c) Deliverance
 - d) Transformation
- 8. They have a determined, strong expectancy that God would answer their earnest plea.

B. Key Steps in Becoming an Effective Intercessor

- 1. Passionately pursue God Himself through prayer with fasting. Walk out a heartfelt total commitment to the Lord Jesus Christ, His Church, and His purposes.
- 2. Carry a heart full of compassionate love for His people and His plans to be fulfilled in their generation.
- 3. Take time regularly for worship, praise and times of solitude in order to hear God's voice.
- 4. Actively read and meditate on the Bible and ask God that you will experience everything it declares is your inheritance.
- 5. Read inspiring books of missionary journeys and ask questions in order to learn from others.

- 6. Develop tools to help others cultivate a lifestyle of prayer and intercession.
- 7. Love doing it! Revival intercessors are not just "Hearers of the Word" but they are also "Doers of the Word."

II. THE TENACIOUS PRAYER OF MOSES

Moses' holy arguments with God prevailed and released God to act in mercy. Let's take a look at some of these great prayers from the life of Moses.

A. Prayers from Exodus

1. From Exodus 32:9–14:

"Then the LORD said to Moses, 'I have seen this people, and behold, they are an obstinate people. So now leave Me alone, that My anger may burn against them and that I may destroy them; and I will make of you a great nation.'

Then Moses pleaded with the LORD his God, and said, 'LORD, why does Your anger burn against Your people whom You have brought out from the land of Egypt with great power and a mighty hand? Why should the Egyptians talk, saying, "With evil motives He brought them out, to kill them on the mountains and to destroy them from the face of the earth?" Turn from Your burning anger and relent of doing harm to Your people. Remember Abraham, Isaac, and Israel, Your servants to whom You swore by Yourself, and said to them, 'I will multiply your descendants as the stars of the heavens, and all this land of which I have spoken I will give to your descendants, and they shall inherit it forever.'

So the LORD relented of the harm which He said He would do to His people."

- a) Moses argued from the history of **God's redeeming acts for Israel.** He told God that it would be out of character with His great acts of mercy if He destroyed Israel now.
- b) Moses argued from **the glory of God's Name.** In Exodus 32:12, Moses pleads for God to not give the Egyptians a reason to slander His name if He destroys the Israelites.
- c) Moses argued from **God's faithfulness to His loyal servants**, Abraham, Isaac, and Israel, and **from the promises He had given them.** He boldly quoted back to God the promise He had made and held God to His own word (Exodus 32:13).

2. From Exodus 33:12–16:

"Then Moses said to the LORD, 'See You say to me, "Bring up this people!" But You Yourself have not let me know whom You will send with me. Moreover, You have said, "I have known you by name, and you have also found favor in My sight." Now then, if I have found favor in Your sight in any way, please let me know Your ways so that I may know You, in order that I may find favor in Your sight. Consider too, that this nation is Your people. And He said, 'My presence shall go with you, and I will give you rest.'

Then he said to Him, 'If Your presence does not go with us, do not lead us up from here. For how then can it be known that I have found favor in Your sight, I and Your people? Is it not by Your going with us, so that we, I and Your people, may be distinguished from all the other people who are on the face of the earth?'"

- a) A.W. Tozer stated that if the Holy Spirit had been removed from the New Testament Church, 95 percent of what they did would have ceased and five percent would have remained. He went on to comment that if the Holy Spirit was removed from today's Church, 95 percent of what they do would continue and only five percent would cease.¹
- b) Let us be as Moses and cry for God's presence to be released and go before us! May the forerunner spirit be poured out again, and may we the Church be filled, led by, and captured by the loveliness of His great presence.

B. Prayer from the Book of Numbers

1. From Numbers 14:11–16:

"And the Lord said to Moses, 'How long will this people be disrespectful to Me? And how long will they not believe in Me, despite all the signs that I have performed in their midst? I will strike them with plague and dispossess them, and I will make you into a nation greater and mightier than they.' But Moses said to the Lord, 'Then the Egyptians will hear of it, for by Your strength You brought this people up from their midst, and they will tell it to the inhabitants of this land. They have heard that You, Lord, are in the midst of this people, because You, Lord, are seen eye to eye, while Your cloud stands over them; and You go before them in a pillar of cloud by day, and in a pillar of fire by night. Now if You put this people to death all at once, then the nations who have heard of Your fame will say, "Since the Lord could not bring this people into

the land which He promised them by oath, He slaughtered them in the wilderness.""

- a) Once again Moses pleads before God that His fame would spread and His great Name be vindicated (verse 13–16).
- b) In verse 17, Moses cries out for God's power to be revealed.
- c) Moses then reminds the Lord of His character, of being slow to anger and abundant in lovingkindness (verse 18).
- d) Finally, Moses stands in the gap (verse 19) and confesses the sin of his people, "Pardon, I pray..."

2. From Numbers 14:20-21:

"So the Lord said, 'I have pardoned them according to your word: But indeed, as I live, all the earth will be filled with the glory of the Lord.'"

- a) Verse 20 is very pivotal in the understanding of these principles. The Lord answers the intercessory plea, "According to your [Moses] word." God listened to the voice of a man, and in response pardon was granted instead of judgment.
- b) After this pardon, a profound revelation is released (verse 21). The Lord pours forth His heart and declares, "All the earth will be filled with the glory of the Lord!"
- c) The prophetic promise was released after man presented his case before God. May it be so again today!

III. STEPS TO HIS GLORY

A. Following the Pattern

- 1. A crisis occurs (Numbers 14:11–12)
- 2. We remind God of His covenant nature (Numbers 14:13–17)
- 3. A divine revelation of His mercy is received (Numbers 14:18)
- 4. The desperate cry arises (Numbers 14:19)
- 5. The response comes, "Pardoned by your word" (Numbers 14:20)
- 6. The prophetic declaration of His glory is released (Numbers 14:21)
- 7. The call and the requirements are confirmed (Numbers 14:24)

B. The Principles Today

In this insightful passage, consecutive steps are revealed as part of the process of His glory being released.

Fires of Revival: Study Guide Lesson One: When God Listens to the Voice of Man

- 1. We must ask the question, "Are these principles true for us today as well?"
- 2. If so, what is the response needed for these same results to come to pass in our generation?

IV. GOD TURNS HIS HEAD EARTHWARD

A. What Moved the Heart of God?

As I have pondered the principles found here, I find that the Lord responded to Moses' pleas by going from one extreme of judgment to the other extreme of pardon, while also declaring a profound prophetic destiny involving the entire earth. What moved the heart of God? What changed God's mind?

- 1. As recorded in Numbers 14:19, Moses makes his appeal for pardon not on the basis of the people's merit, but according to the greatness of God's mercy. Moses had a revelation that the Father's heart was one of mercy.
- 2. Moses also saw that God's mercy was continual, not just occasional, again as indicated in the phrase, "You have forgiven this people from Egypt, even until now."

B. What Moves the Heart of God Today?

How does a "breakthrough" come? What will it take to change the mind of God in this generation?

1. A look at Hebrews 13:8:

"Jesus Christ is the same yesterday, today, and forever."

- a) God's nature is the same.
- b) What moved God's heart yesterday will move God's heart again today.
- 2. A look at James 2:13:

"For judgment is without mercy to the one who has shown no mercy; mercy triumphs over judgment."

- a) If you want mercy, you must give mercy.
- b) Remember, there is always a higher dimension to walk in. Look up into the Father's heart and deep in the center of His bosom is a heart of mercy. Mercy triumphs over judgment.
- c) Therefore, align yourself with what is in God's heart. Lift a cry for mercy.

C. According to Your Word

God's response to Moses' plea of desperation was that of, "I have pardoned them according to your word."

But whose word? Moses' word!

Yes, even today God wants to bend His head and His ear earthward and release mercy. Perhaps He is waiting on you. When He hears His heart beating in the heart of an earthen vessel, once again we will have the same results!

God will listen to the voice of people whose pleas echo what is in agreement with the Father's heart! Let mercy triumph over judgment again, again, and again!

V. LET THE CRY ARISE!

A. A Look at Psalm 107:28:

"Then they cried to the Lord in their trouble, and He brought them out of their distresses."

B. Let's Pray Together!

As we begin our journey together towards Revival Breakthrough, we commit ourselves to You once again. Here we are. We are Yours. We were bought by the price of the blood of the Lamb of God on the cross of Calvary. We desire to learn from those who have blazed the trail before us. We want to learn the path that leads to the greater glory of God.

We desire to pray the prayers that are in alignment with the very heart of God Himself. We want to be a voice that matters and a voice that can be heard in the courts of Heaven. Teach us. Lead us so that true, lasting revival will come into our lives, our families, our cities and nations. In Jesus' great name, amen and amen!

Reflection Questions Lesson One: When God Listens to the Voice of Man

Answers to these questions can be found in the back of the study guide.

Fill in the Blank

1.	In Exodus 32, Moses argued from the history of God's a	icts
	for Israel, from the of God's name, from God's	to
	His loyal servants, and from the He had given them.	
2.	Numbers 14:19 shows that Moses had a revelation that the Father's laws and of	neart
3.	was one of In Numbers 14:20, it was according to word that the Lord responded with a pardon instead of judgment.	
Sho	rt Answer Questions:	
4.	List two of the shared characteristics of revival intercessors:	
5.	List two of the key steps in becoming an effective intercessor:	

Continued on the next page.

Scripture Memorization

6.	Write out Acts 1:14a and memorize this verse.
Refl	ection Questions
7.	Reflecting on the passage in Numbers 14, what moved the heart of God? Share your thoughts and reflections on this scripture and what you learned in today's lesson.
8.	How would you summarize the most impactful parts of this lesson for yourself? What were your key takeaways?

Answers to the Reflection Questions

Lesson One: When God Listens to the Voice of Man

- 1. redeeming; glory; faithfulness; promises
- 2. mercy
- 3. Moses
- 4. (List any of the answers from Section I. A. #1-8)
- 5. (List any of the answers from Section I. B. #1-7)

Lesson Two: The Need for Identificational Repentance — Father, Forgive Us!

- 1. gap; people
- 2. identification; revelation; conviction
- 3. forgive
- 4. (List any of the answers from Section II. C. #1-5)
- 5. (List the answers from Section II. C. #1-8)

Lesson Three: Creating an Opening

- 1. presence
- 2. Jacob; gates
- 3. again
- 4. (List any of the answers from Section II. B. #1-4)
- 5. (List the answers from Section II. C. #1-2)

Lesson Four: Practical Aspects of Fasting

- 1. discipline; quiet
- 2. aligns; purpose
- 3. ministering; callings
- 4. (List the answers from Section III. A-D.)
- 5. (List any of the answers from Section IV. B. #1-6)

Lesson Five: Fasting for Crisis Intervention

- 1. power; release
- 2. you
- 3. speaking; fasting
- 4. (List the answers from Section I. A-D.)
- 5. (List any of the answers from Section III. A. #1-11)

Lesson Six: Fasting Releases God's Presence and Power

- 1. fast
- 2. priesthood
- 3. restoration
- 4. (List the answers from Section II. B. #1-3)
- 5. (List the answers from Section V. A. #1-4)

Lesson Seven: Gatekeepers of His Presence

- 1. out; in
- 2. entrance
- 3. spiritual; gates
- 4. (List two of the answers from Section II. A. #1-8)
- 5. (List the answers from Section III. A-G.)

Lesson Eight: Possessed by God

- 1. blood
- 2. Him
- 3. strengthened

Lesson Nine: Classic Characteristics of Revival

- 1. restoration
- 2. decline; momentum
- 3. heaven; hell
- 4. (List the answers from Section I. C. #1-3)
- 5. (1) intense hunger for change, (2) prayer to God to change things, and (3) networking towards unity

Lesson Ten: Revival Manifestations and Phenomena

- 1. supernatural
- 2. living
- 3. good; bad; rejected
- 4. (See Section II. A-D)
- 5. (See Section III. C. #3 for a more detailed answer)

Lesson Eleven: Prophetic Promises for the Great Harvest

- 1. global
- 2. Isaiah
- 3. return

Lesson Twelve: Thy Kingdom Come! From Revival to Awakening to Transformation

- 1. Great Britain; United States
- 2. Great Awakening; Evangelical Revival
- 3. Protestant
- 4. (List three of the answers from Section II. A. #1-8)

Additional Resources by James W. Goll

(Many of these books feature a corresponding class and study guide and taught by James W. Goll, available at www.GodEncounters.com.)

Angelic Encounters (with Michal Ann Goll)

The Call to the Elijah Revolution (with Lou Engle)

Deliverance from Darkness

The Discerner

Dream Language (with Michal Ann Goll)

Empowered Women: Fearless and Free (with Michal Ann Goll)

The Feeler

God Encounters Today (with Michal Ann Goll)

Global Prayer Storm

Hearing God's Voice Today

Heroines of Faith: Women of Courage, Compassion, and the Secret Place – Women on the Frontlines (Michal Ann Goll with James W. Goll)

The Lifestyle of a Prophet

The Lifestyle of a Watchman

The Lost Art of Intercession

The Lost Art of Practicing His Presence

Living a Supernatural Life

Passionate Pursuit

Praying with God's Heart

The Prophet

A Radical Faith

Releasing Spiritual Gifts Today

Revival Breakthrough

The Mystery of Israel and the Middle East

The Scribe

The Seer

Strike the Mark

End Notes

- 1 https://www.goodreads.com/quotes/964813-if-the-holy-spirit-was-withdrawn-from-the-church-today.
- ² James W. Goll, Father, Forgive Us (Shippensburg, PA: Destiny Image Publishers, 1999), 21.
- ³ Dr. Gary Greig, "Praying for Revival: Focusing Our Intercession, Spiritual Warfare and Protecting Ourselves in the Battle," teaching outline (Virginia Beach, VA: Regent University, 1996).
- ⁴ Cindy Jacobs, "Identificational Repentance Through Biblical Remitting of Sins," in *Releasing Destiny* by Stephen Mansfield (Nashville, TN: Daniel 1 School of Leadership, n.d.).
- ⁵ John Dawson, Healing America's Wounds (Ventura, CA: Regal Books, 1994), 30.
- ⁶ Goll, Father, Forgive Us, 22.
- ⁷ Strong's Exhaustive Concordance of the Bible, #3670, https://www.biblehub.com/greek/3670.htm.
- 8 Strong's, #1843, https://www.biblehub.com/greek/1843.htm.
- 9 Merriam-Webster.com Dictionary, s.v. "convict," https://www.merriam-webster.com/dictionary/convict.
- ¹⁰ Goll, Father, Forgive Us, 50-54.
- ¹¹ C. Peter Wagner, Warfare Prayer (Ventura, CA: Regal Books, 1992), 130-131.
- ¹² Lewis Edgar Jones, "There Is Power in the Blood," 1899.
- ¹³ Goll, Father, Forgive Us, 232-233.
- ¹⁴ Goll, Father, Forgive Us, 249.
- ¹⁵ Wesley, Duewel, Revival Fire (Grand Rapids, MI: Zondervan, 1995), chap. 40.
- ¹⁶ Duewel, Revival Fire, chap. 40, Kindle. For additional information on this revival, please look at: Duncan Campbell, "The Revival on the Isle of Lewis," SermonIndex.net, audio recording.
- ¹⁷ Duewel, Revival Fire, chap. 23.
- ¹⁸ Duewel, Revival Fire, chap. 25.
- ¹⁹ Duewel, Revival Fire, chaps. 24 and 25.
- ²⁰ Wesley L. Duewel, Touch the World Through Prayer (Grand Rapids, MI: Zondervan, 1986), 232.
- ²¹ Ole Hallesby, *Prayer* (Minneapolis, MN: Augsburg Fortress, 1994), 118. Hallesby (1879-1961) was a theologian, author, and educator.
- ²² Derek Prince, Shaping History Through Prayer and Fasting (New Kensington, PA: Whitaker House, 2018), 128.
- ²³ Tony Cauchi, "Franklin Hall," Revival Library, https://www.revival-library.org/revival_heroes/20th_century/hall_franklin.shtml.
- ²⁴ Bill Bright, The Coming Revival: America's Call to Fast, Pray, and "Seek God's Face" (Midlands, UK: New Life Publications, 1995). Dr. Bright was originally against speaking in tongues, but later in his ministry, he chose to lift the ban on the gifts of the Spirit. He also received a revelation vision about the importance of fasting.
- ²⁵ Bright, Coming Revival.
- ²⁶ Mahesh Chavda, *The Hidden Power of Prayer & Fasting* (Shippensburg, PA: Destiny Image Publishers, 1988).
- ²⁷ Lou Engle and Dean Briggs, The Jesus Fast: The Call to Awaken the Nations (Ada, MI: Chosen Books, 2016).
- ²⁸ Charles Finney, *The Memoirs of Charles G. Finney*, 1868, https://www.charlesgfinney.com/memoirsrestored/memrest02.htm.
- ²⁹ Finney, Memoirs.
- ³⁰ Larry Sparks, Charisma magazine, "3 Ways to Keep Revival Alive," 2014, https://mycharisma.com/spiritled-living/3-ways-to-keep-revival-alive.
- ³¹ Sparks, "3 Ways to Keep Revival Alive."
- ³² Edgar H. Lewellen, Revival—God's Proven Method of Awakening His Church (self-published, 2005), 10, https://books.google.com/books?id=WpDjDx80fzsC&pg=PA10&lpg=PA10&dq=charles+finney+The+experience+of+revival+is+nothing+more+than+a+new+beginning+to+obedience+to+God.
- ³³ Vance Havner, *Hearts Afire*, reprint, ed. (Independently published: Solid Christian Books, 2014; Westwood, NJ: Fleming Revell, 1952), 77. Citation refers to the reprint edition.
- ³⁴ Vance Havner, as quoted in *Spiritual Formation Is...:How to Grow in Jesus with Passion and Confidence* by Rod Dempsey and Dave Earley (Nashville, TN: B&H Academic, 2018), 104.
- 35 "Revival Summaries—Great Awakenings," Renewal Journal, March 10, 2013, https://renewaljournal.com/2013/03/10/greatawakenings/.
- 36 Leonard Ravenhill, "Revival Series, Lecture 1," https://www.ravenhill.org/revival1.htm#:~:text.
- ³⁷ J.C. Ryle, "J.C. Ryle's Estimation of Whitefield's Ministry," Grace Online Library, https://graceonlinelibrary.org/biographies/j-c-ryles-estimation-of-whitefields-ministry-by-j-c-ryle/.
- ³⁸ Martyn Lloyd-Jones, Revival (Wheaton, IL: Crossway, 1987), 145.

- ³⁹ Paul Cain, "I See Stadiums," in Ken Gott, Paul Cain, and Stacey Campbell, *Prayers for the Harvest*, Praying the Bible series, MP3 recording. Used by permission.
- ⁴⁰ Bob Jones, "Life Death Encounter," in *Open Heavens* vol. 1 by Wesley and Stacey Campbell, MP3 recording.
- ⁴¹ Bill Hamon, *The Eternal Church* (Shippensburg, PA: Destiny Image Publishers, 2007), 309.
- ⁴² Rick Joyner, *The Harvest* (Fort Mill, SC: Morningstar Publications, 2011), 23-26.
- ⁴³ Chuck Pierce, *The Passover Prophecies* (Lake Mary, FL: Charisma House, 2020), chap. 3, Kindle. Italics are in the original.
- ⁴⁴ Cindy Jacobs, Reformers Arise: Your Prophetic Strategy for Bringing Heaven to Earth (Shippensburg, PA: Destiny Image, 2021), 82-85.
- ⁴⁵ Jacobs, Reformers Arise, 86.

About the Author

James W. Goll is the founder of God Encounters Ministries, formerly known as Encounters Network. He is an international bestselling author, a certified Life Language Coach, an adviser to leaders and ministries, and a recording artist.

With great joy James has traveled around the world ministering in more than 50 nations sharing the love of Jesus, imparting the power of intercession, prophetic ministry, and life in the Spirit. His passion is to "win for the Lamb the rewards of His suffering." In the spirit of revival and reformation, James desires to facilitate unity in body of Christ by relationally networking with leaders of various denominational streams.

He has recorded numerous classes with corresponding curriculum kits and is the author of more than fifty books, including The Seer, The Discerner, The Feeler, The Prophet, Dream Language, Global Prayer Storm, The Lost Art of Intercession, Praying with God's Heart and The Mystery of Israel and the Middle East. James is also the founder of GOLL Ideation LLC, where creativity, consulting, and leadership training come together.

James was married to Michal Ann for thirty-two years before her graduation to heaven in the fall of 2008. He has four adult married children and a growing number of grandchildren. James continues to make his home in Franklin, Tennessee.

For More Information & Additional Resources:

James W. Goll
God Encounters Ministries
P.O. Box 681965
Franklin, TN 37068

Visit: www.GodEncounters.com or www.JamesGoll.com

Email: info@godencounters.com

Speaking Invitations: <u>InviteJames@godencounters.com</u>





God Encounters Ministries was founded in 1993 in Missouri, and was originally called Ministry to the Nations. It was a natural - supernatural overflow of the relationship that James and Michal Ann Goll had with Jesus and each other. After moving to the Nashville, TN area in 1997, the ministry was renamed Encounters Network. Through the years the heart and core values of the ministry have remained exactly the same!

Now we are reaching more people than ever with the gospel of Jesus, teaching and imparting the power of prophetic ministry, intercession and life in the Spirit. We believe that God Encounters are for everyone! So visit our website and deepen your walk with God today!

For more info, visit: GodEncounters.com



Blog

Grow in your relationship with God. Enjoy poignant articles from James W. Goll that will inspire you.



Classes

20+ Online Classes by James W. Goll. Great for self-study or to facilitate a small group in your home or church.



Media

Hundreds of FREE Audio and Video messages ready to revitalize you and give you hope! Access on demand.



Store

Cultivate revelation in your walk of faith. Dynamic resources to equip you and light your spiritual fire.

